ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COVMERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE
January 18, 2006
3:21 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Tom Anderson, Chair
Representative Pete Kott
Representative Gabriell e LeDoux
Representative Bob Lynn

Represent ati ve Nor man Rokeber g
Representative Harry Crawford
Representative David Guttenberg

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 338

"An Act relating to applications, qualifications, and crim nal
hi story and background checks for a certificate of fitness for
expl osives handlers; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO 93

"An Act relating to dentists and dental hygienists and the Board
of Dental Exam ners; establishing certain conmmttees for the
discipline and peer review of denti sts; excluding the
adj udi catory proceedings of the Board of Dental Exam ners and
its commttees from the Admnistrative Procedure Act and from
the jurisdiction of the office of adm nistrative hearings; and
providing for an effective date."

- MOVED CSHB 93(L&C) OUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 295
"An Act adopting the Uniform Fraudulent Transfer Act and
relating to fraudul ent transfers of property.”

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -1- January 18, 2006



BILL: HB 338
SHORT TITLE: CERTIF. OF FI TNESS FOR EXPLGOSI VE HANDLERS
SPONSOR(S): REPRESENTATI VE(S) CHENAULT, REPRESENTATI VE LYNN

01/ 09/ 06 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 12/ 30/ 05

01/ 09/ 06 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 09/ 06 (H) L&C, FIN

01/ 18/ 06 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

BILL: HB 93

SHORT TI TLE: DENTI STS AND DENTAL HYQ ENI STS
SPONSCR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE(S) ANDERSON

01/ 21/ 05 (H) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/ 21/ 05 (H) L&C, JUD, FIN

01/ 28/ 05 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

01/ 28/ 05 (H) -- Meeting Cancel ed --

02/ 02/ 05 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TCL 17

02/ 02/ 05 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 02/ 05 (H) M NUTE( L&C)

01/ 18/ 06 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TCL 17

W TNESS REG STER

SHARALYN " SUE" WRI GHT, Staff

to Representative M ke Chenault

House Finance Conmmittee

Al aska State Legislature

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provi ded opening statenment on HB 338 on
behal f of Representative Chenault, one of the prine sponsors.

GREY M TCHELL, Director

Central Ofice

Di vi sion of Labor Standards and Safety

Department of Labor & Workforce Devel opnment (DLWVD)
Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 338.

CLI FF HUSTEAD, Chi ef

Consul tation & Trai ning

Cccupational Safety & Health

Di vi sion of Labor Standards & Safety

Depart ment of Labor & Workforce Devel opnent
Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 338.

HEATH HI LYARD, St aff

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -2- January 18, 2006



to Representative Tom Anderson

Al aska State Legislature

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 93 on behal f of Representative
Ander son, sponsor.

JIM TOALE, Executive Director

Al aska Dental Society, Inc. (ADS)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 93.

GEORGE SHAFFER, D. M D.

Al aska Dental Society, Inc. (ADS)

Ket chi kan, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 93.

RICK URION, Director

Central Ofice

Di vi sion of Cccupational Licensing

Department of Commerce, Community, & Economic Devel opnent
( DCCED)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Expressed concerns with HB 93.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAI R TOM ANDERSON cal | ed the House Labor and Conmerce Standing

Commttee neeting to order at 3:21:48 PM Represent ati ves
Anderson, Kott, Rokeberg, Lynn, and CGuttenberg were present at
the call to order. Representatives Crawford and LeDoux arrived

as the nmeeting was in progress.

HB 338-CERTIF. OF FI TNESS FOR EXPLOSI VE HANDLERS

3:22:59 PM

CHAI R ANDERSON announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 338, "An Act relating to applications,
qualifications, and crimnal history and background checks for a
certificate of fitness for explosives handlers; and providing
for an effective date.”

SHARALYN "SUE" WRIGHT, Staff to Representative Chenault, House
Finance Conmittee, Alaska State Legislature, stated that the
Departnment of Labor & Workforce Devel opnent (DLWD) requested the
| egi slation and woul d therefore be presenting HB 338.

3:24: 01 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 3- January 18, 2006



GREY M TCHELL, Director, Central Ofice, Division of Labor
Standards and Safety, Depart nent of Labor & Workforce
Devel opnent (DLWD), stated that he is in support of HB 338. He
informed the commttee that the division I|icenses explosive
handlers in the state. There are currently about 170 |icensed
expl osives handlers in Alaska, and the Division issues 50-70 new
licenses each year. It is a three-year license. He stated that
the intention of the legislation is to create a system that
would allow the Division to check for national crimnal records
of the applicants. [ The background check] would also apply to
anyone renewi ng his or her license. He explained that " ... To
us it just made good comon sense to do that, wth the
concerns that are going around the country right now, and we
have these workers who are working in close contact wth
expl osives; we want to nmake sure that they don't have records
t hat woul d cause concerns for us."

3:25:21 PM

CHAI R ANDERSON i nforned the commttee that there was a proposed
amendnent, which read [original punctuation provided]:

Section 7 This act would not apply to people working
under the jurisdiction of the US. Departnment of
Labor, M ne Safety and Health Adm nistration.

MR MTCHELL stated that he was famliar with the proposed
anendnent .

CHAI R ANDERSON expl ai ned that the proposed anendnent would add a
new section and would address concerns of the Al aska Mners
Associ ati on.

MR MTCHELL, 1in response to a question, stated that the
proposed anendnent is designed to clarify that HB 338 was not
intended to extend to mners. He explained that mners are
covered under the U S. Departnent of Labor (USDL), M ne Safety
and Health Admnistration (MSHA) jurisdiction, and so the
department DLWD doesn't have any authority over them He added
that the proposed anendnent puts this into witing.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked if the proposed anendnent woul d
excl ude gravel extraction.

MR. M TCHELL responded that any mning covered under the NMSHA's
jurisdiction would be cover ed.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -4- January 18, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG renmarked that taking a cliff face down
to renove it and then reuse it seens to be covering both m ning
and extraction. He asked if highway construction would be
considered mning because, in this area, they seem to be the
sane.

MR MTCHELL agreed that this is probably right, and that
certain projects would be so closely tied that it would require
certification in both areas.

3:31: 26 PM

CLIFF HUSTEAD, Chief, Consultation & Training, Occupational
Safety & Health, Division of Labor Standards & Safety,
Departnment of Labor & Wbrkforce Devel opnent (DLWD), noted that
he would be representing the GCccupational Safety & Health
Adm nistration (OSHA) and stated that it was never the intent to
include mners in the regul ation.

3:32:12 PM

VR. HUSTEAD, in response to an earlier guestion from
Representative Guttenberg, stated that when expl osives handlers
are dealing with gravel, it wuld fall wunder the MSHA s

jurisdiction. He explained that if it was for a | ogging road or
sonething of that nature, and "they" were wusing the fil
material to build road, then it would fall wunder the DLW s
jurisdiction.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked if there was a connection

between having a "handler's I|icense” and having a "business
license". He said:
One of the concerns that | hear from explosives
handlers is, oftentinmes when they go out on a job
the [contractors] t hensel ves don't have ... an
expl osives |icense, and they want the handler to have
the |I|icense. And then it Dbecones an issue of
liability and who's carrying the liability insurance
for the event. So, sonetines you're just putting the

handl er out of business, or not, but you're certainly
putting the liability on that person, and they don't
have control of the worksite.

MR. HUSTEAD responded that the blaster would only have to have a
busi ness license if he/she owned the conpany. |If working for a

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 5- January 18, 2006



conpany as an enployee, he/she would not be required to have a
busi ness |icense.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked if the 10-year "l ook-back" for
felonies is conformng to the federal standard.

MR. HUSTEAD answered that Alaska is the only state that has a
| ook back provision. He added that [OSHA] would like to expand
the | ook back provision to the rest of the nation, because the
individuals that it applies to will go from state to state, and
[OSHA] would like to know if the person has commtted a felony
in anot her state.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked how long it takes to get the
results of a background check.

MR. HUSTEAD replied that normally the results are received the
same day.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked if this was for a fingerprint
background check.

MR. HUSTEAD confirnmed that it is.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD asked if the background check was for
any fel ony.

CHAI R ANDERSON conmmented that sonme felonies would apply nore
t han ot hers, and asked how this woul d work.

MR. M TCHELL, in response to questions said that the 10-year
| ook-back period does apply to any felony, and there is an

appeal process. If the felony doesn't relate to a person's
ability to handle explosives safely, a person would be able to
appeal to the <conmissioner's office. He added that the

departnment does not have any regulations in place, because the
statute i s new.

CHAI R ANDERSON comrented that he would like to see "crimna
hi story" and the section regarding the 10-year felony | ook-back
provi sion renoved, adding that he does not see the rel evance.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if there is a provision for
current license holders to be "grandfathered in."

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 6- January 18, 2006



MR MTCHELL replied that there is no such clause in the bill.
He explained that the [license holder's situation] would be
reviewed at the tine of renewal. He said:

Let's say there's soneone out there who has a felony

record ... wthin the last ten year, that's currently
got a blasters license; they ... would be denied and
then have to go through the appeal process ... to

mai ntain their |icense upon renewal .
REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG sai d:

You're making the assunption that there is a

grandfathering by saying a current |icensee woul dn't
have to apply for a new license ... or certificate of
fitness until it expired. There seens to be a little

anbi guity here about that.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG added that usually there are transition
provi si ons when requirenments are changed, and that he would Iike
to get a legal [opinion on this issue].

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT said: "The way | read it, in Section 2, it
says: ... ‘'applicant for the issuance or renewal of a
certificate'. So, it seens to ne that if you had a |license that
was expiring a year and a half from now, that | don't have to
subject nyself to fingerprints and a background check until |
cone up for renewal." He asked M. Mtchell if this is correct.

MR M TCHELL confirmed that this is correct.
3:41: 56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if the anmendnment should be
expanded to cover the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco & Firearns
(ATF). He also asked how the departnment would verify if soneone
al ready has a certificate in another state.

MR. HUSTEAD stated that the ATF mainly regul ates the storage and
transportation of explosives, and the departnent does not
believe that it is necessary to add the ATF to the amendnent.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if ATF issues any type of
certificate of fitness.

MR. HUSTEAD answered that it does not; only the MSHA issues a
certificate.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -7- January 18, 2006



MR. M TCHELL, in response to questions from Representative Kott,
stated that the nunber of explosives handlers is not grow ng
rapidly, and that the cost of the background check woul d be $35,
plus an additional $18 for the national background check. He
added that there may be a fee for fingerprinting, depending on
where the fingerprinting is done.

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT asked if the applicant would need to submt
to a background check each time the license is up for renewal.

MR M TCHELL confirmed that this is correct.

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT expressed concern about the 10-year | ook
back.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN comrented that a felony is a serious issue,
and that explosives are dangerous. He expressed approval for
the way that the legislation is currently witten.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked if Section 1, Paragraph (5)
whi ch says, "other information that the departnent requires”,
includes interviews with applicants. He explained that he has
heard concerns regarding the length of tinme it takes to receive
a federal permt, adding that the application process for a
federal permt includes an in-person interview and can take up
to five nonths.

MR. M TCHELL explained that Paragraph (5) is part of current
statute, and was sinply renunbered as a result of addi ng anot her
Paragraph (4). He stated his belief that the current
regul ations ask for additional information from the applicant,
and that there is no intention of requiring an in-person
i nterview.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT comment ed t hat comm tting numer ous
m sdeneanors is also inappropriate behavior, and that soneone
may have committed a crinme 10 years ago that was a m sdeneanor
at the time, but is now a felony. He added that when he was in

the mlitary, they would have people fill out the forns for a
background check and it would take anywhere from two to four
mont hs, depending on the extent of the check. He stated that

oftentimes, even though there was nothing returned in the
background check that would indicate the person had conmtted a
crinre, they would have field representatives go out and
i nterview neighbors. He asked what the reaction of the
departnment would be if they were to have a field representative

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 8- January 18, 2006



i nterview neighbors or friends and the representative discovered
that the person was known to do illegal drugs. He stated that
even if the person hadn't been caught, it [should] be a concern.

MR. M TCHELL responded that if those types of concerns were
brought to the attention of the departnent, they would have the
authority wunder current regulations to revoke the explosives
handl er's license, and hold hearings concerning the allegations.
He explained that in this case, the background check would
consist of the Departnent of Public Safety contacting the
Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBlI) and asking it to check the
national crimnal information system database for any crimna
hi story of the person in question.

CHAI R ANDERSON poi nted out that on page two, line 24, it states
that, "The departnent may not find an applicant conpetent”, and
coomented that this neans it's not a guarantee that the
applicant shall receive a certificate.

MR M TCHELL confirmed that this is correct.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX commented that as used in the bill, the
termfelony is both too broad and too narrow, explaining that it
does not include sone m sdeneanors that mght show an inability
to control one's tenper, while including sone felonies that
woul d not affect one's ability to handl e expl osi ves.

MR MTCHELL replied that this statenent is fairly accurate,
adding that regulations are in the works right now, in an
attenpt to firm up what a statew de background check |ooks for

in terns of m sdeneanors. He commented that certain crines,
such as donestic violence, should limt a person's ability to
have an explosives handler's |icense. M. Mtchell added that

this is designed to apply in a broad sense, and |ooks at
nati onw de dat a.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if this applies to fireworks.

MR. HUSTEAD responded that it does not, and that fireworks are
not considered "construction activity."

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG poi nted out AS 08.52.070, which reads:
Sec. 08.52.070. Persons exenpt.
Persons enployed in mning operations as defined in AS

27.20.061 are exenpt from the provisions of this
chapter.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -9- January 18, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG commented that because this |anguage is
already in statute, he did not know that the proposed anmendnent
i s needed.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG commented that the legislation is only
regul ati ng people who are licensed and looking for a legitinmate
job in the industry. He added that the people who are "up to
m schief" would still be able to walk into a store and buy the
suppl i es.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD stated that finger printing applicants
would be a good idea. He commented that he understands the
intent of the legislation, but feels that the current wording is
“overkill."

MR. M TCHELL replied that in addition to the "terrorist threat,"
the departnent is also trying to protect the public from those
i ndividuals who may act recklessly. He added that it is a
"fairly big job" to nake sure that the departnment is acting
responsi bly when issuing |icenses.

4:04: 46 PM
REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD said: "I don't know that it's up to us
to continue to ... punish sonebody for sonething that they have

supposedly paid their debt to society for."
4:05:24 PM

CHAI R ANDERSON stated that the proposed anendnment would not be
offered in the conmttee, as the concerns are already addressed
in current statute.

4:06: 35 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG stated that having spent his life
working in this industry, he agrees wth Representative
Crawford, adding that he would prefer that any necessary changes
be made in the House Labor and Conmerce Standing Conmitt ee.

CHAI R ANDERSON added that he agrees with Representative Crawford
inregard to, "how far do you take this."

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD expressed concern about drafting an

anendnent "on the fly," adding that he would |ike a chance to
work with the departnment to draft new | anguage.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 10- January 18, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG comented that the current felony
statutes are onerous in sone areas, and HB 338 may conflict with
t hem He added that it would be a good idea to look into this
al t hough he is not sure how this would be done.

4:09:42 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN comrented that it mght be better to nove
the bill from comittee and have an anmendnent drafted before it
is scheduled for its hearing in the House Finance Commttee.

CHAIR ANDERSON replied that there are four commttee nenbers
with concerns, adding that it would be best to hold the bil
over.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT, referring to Section 4, line 24, stated
that after further thought, "may not" clearly states that there
is no choice, adding that "shall not" would al so be appropri ate.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWCORD stated that he would work wth the
sponsor to try and cone up with different |anguage.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT commented that it would be difficult to nmke
the bill work for all the different situations that could
possi bly cone up.

CHAI R ANDERSON rel ayed that HB 338 woul d be hel d over.

HB 93- DENTI STS AND DENTAL HYQ ENI STS

4:13:01 PM

CHAI R ANDERSON announced that the |ast order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 93 "An Act relating to dentists and dental
hygi enists and the Board of Dental Exam ners; establishing
certain commttees for the discipline and peer review of
dentists; excluding the adjudicatory proceedings of the Board of
Dental Examiners and its conmttees from the Admnistrative
Procedure Act and from the jurisdiction of the office of
adm ni strative hearings; and providing for an effective date."
[Before the commttee was the proposed committee substitute (CS)
for HB 93, Version 24-1LS0384\G M schel, 1/31/05, which was
adopted as a work draft on 2/2/05.]

4:13:11 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -11- January 18, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE KOTT noved to adopt the proposed CS for HB 93,
Version 24-1LS0384\1, M schel, 1/12/06, as the working docunent.
There being no objection, Version | was before the commttee.

4:13:49 PM

HEATH HI LYARD, Staff to Representative Anderson, Alaska State
Legi slature, sponsor, informed the conmttee on behalf of
Representative Anderson that many of the concerns expressed by
the Alaska Dental Society, Inc. (ADS) and the D vision of
Cccupational Licensing have been addressed via Version |I. He
expl ai ned that one of the concerns of the division was that in
the original version, the Board of Dental Exam ners was given
far broader power than the division confortable wth. He added
that Jim Tow e fromthe ADS would be able to explain the changes
in greater detail.

4:15:41 PM

JIM TOAME, Executive Director, Alaska Dental Society, Inc.,
(ADS), stated that the ADS has worked extensively wth the
division to address their concerns, adding that they are ready
to address any new concerns that the division may have. He
explained that the language in Version | has been nodified to
ensure that the departnent staff involved in the investigatory
process work with the Board of Dental Exam ners ("the board"),
and the board woul d not be enpowered to act independently.

CHAIR ANDERSON comrented that the CS was faxed to several
dentists, and his office did not receive any objections. He
asked if any menbers of the commttee had received any calls
wi th concerns or objections.

4:17:49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked how the public feels about the
proposed "peer review' and how it has worked in the past.

CHAI R ANDERSON asked M. Tow e to address the issue of having
"peer review' instead of review by a neutral entity.

MR. TOALE replied that the public nmakes a conpl aint based on the
performance of dentistry, and a l|licensed professional would have
t he background and working know edge to protect the public. He
added that an untrained "professional investigator”" would not be
aware of what goes on in a technical healthcare field.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -12- January 18, 2006



CHAI R ANDERSON asked if this is conmparable to a doctor having
oversight on the Alaska State Mdical Board, or a real estate
agent on the Real Estate Comm ssion & Board of Certified Real
Est at e Appr ai sers.

MR. TOALE answered that this is correct. He added that soneone
who has the training and background in the field would be
qualified to look at things like x-rays and tell if the care
given was appropriate, and that soneone who doesn't have the
trai ni ng and background woul d not be able to do this.

CHAI R ANDERSON asked if by "background", he neant soneone |ike
an occupational |icensing adm nistrator.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG stated his <concern is that the
dentists who are reviewng conplaints may know the party in
question, and asked if there would be a "blind system set up,
so that the person performng the review would not know the
person he/she is review ng.

MR. TOME responded that there is not a "blind system in
statute, and the board would have to set this up.

CHAI R ANDERSON opi ned that the board should be able to deal with
t hese situations, adding that he would rather have a group of
dentists who have the know edge than an adm nistrator who is
unabl e to understand the situation.

4:26: 03 PM

GECRCE SHAFFER, D.M D, Al aska Dental Society, Inc., informed the
committee that he has served as chairnman on the [Board of Dental
Examiners] and is currently on the executive council for the
Al aska Dental Society, Inc., (ADS). He stated that the prem se
for the legislation was to maintain the professional standards
of dentistry. He explained that during his term on the board,
when a conplaint was being nade against a dentist, the board
would be required to nmake a decision based on a report from
departnent investigators, but would not be able to see any

evi dence. He stated that the board would ask to see evidence,
such as an x-ray, and was told that it could not wuntil an
initial deci sion was made and appeal ed; however , t he

Adm nistrative Procedure Act (APA) clearly specifies that an
appeal regarding board action goes to the Al aska Superior Court,
and not back to the board.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 13- January 18, 2006



DR. SHAFFER stated that the |egislation engendered by a desire
to make the process fairer and ensure that problens did not slip
t hrough the cracks. [ The bill] would give the board stronger
power by allowing it to inpose heavier discipline than is
currently in the law, and also gives broader powers for mnor
infractions such as fee disputes. The board is currently
overworked, and this would allow the board to appoint other
commttees to investigate mnor conplaints, though the board
woul d be the final arbitrator to take action.

CHAIR ANDERSON asked if this is simlar to the Al aska Bar
Associ ati on (ABA).

DR. SHAFFER replied that all other professions in the state are
different than the ABA, adding that the bill provides for a
better way to define "checks and bal ances,” allows the board to
deal with serious matters, and puts the board in charge of the
direction and consequences of investigations.

4:31: 50 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD, referring to page 4, line 4, of the
proposed CS, asked the significance of adding "clinical" before
"practice". Referring to page 4, [lines 12-15], he asked if "20
hours" was weekly, nmonthly, or yearly.

DR. SHAFFER replied that "clinical"™ was added to create fairness
in the investigations. He stated that it is easy to get a
license and then not work on a patient for many years, which can
then cause the Ilicense holder to fall behind wth current
practice. He explained that adding "clinical" guarantees that
the license holder is currently working with patients. In
regard to the "20 hours", he stated that this is fairly
arbitrary and that it was neant to be 20 hours per week, which
woul d nmean the |icense holder was working half tine and staying
fairly current.

4:35: 07 PM

CHAI R ANDERSON noved Anendnent 1, to page 4, line 13, adding
"per week" after 20 hours. There being no objection, anmendnent
1 was adopt ed.

4:35:26 PM

DR. SHAFFER, in response to a question from Representative
GQuttenberg, explained that the term "private clinical practice"

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -14- January 18, 2006



was added as a way to guarantee independence for the people
maki ng the decisions, and to ensure that the |icensees were not
making certain choices out of fear that they mght |ose their
j ob.

REPRESENTATI VE  LEDQUX, referring to page 3, l'ine 11
subparagraph B, asked how "threatens or conpron ses patient
care, has the potential to conprom se patient care", differs
from"inpairs a licensee's ability to practice safely".

DR. SHAFFER replied that this wording further clarifies the
definition. In response to further questions and conments, he
explained that "inpairing" would require proof that harm has
been done, whereas "potential to conprom se" neans that there is
a drug problem or addiction that has serious potential to harm a
patient. He added that this gives the board the opportunity to
act sooner, instead of waiting until harm has been done. I n
response to another question from Representative LeDoux, who
referred to pr oposed AS08. 32. 160(6) (c) and pr oposed
AS08. 36. 315(8)(d), he explained that having a difference in
physical and nental disability standards for dentists and
hygi eni sts was an oversight and they should instead be the sane.
He expressed a preference for wording that is nore inclusive and
all ows the board to nonitor both professions.

CHAI R ANDERSON reconmended that they use the wording on page 3,
lines [14-16], subparagraph (c), as the standard for both
pr of essi ons.

DR. SHAFFER replied that the ADS has no problem with this
wor di ng. Referring to the provisions pertaining to addiction
he said that if a dentist or dental hygienist had a drug or
al cohol problem and was in rehabilitation, he/she should be able
to work something out with the board so that he/she is able to
continue working while in rehabilitation.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD commented that he would prefer the
wor di ng on page 8 [lines 25-26], which read:

(D) physical or nental disability that cannot be
overcone through an accommobdation for purposes of
conplying with this chapter;

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX commented that they could try and conbine
t he | anguage in proposed AS08.32.160(6)(c) with the |anguage in
proposed AS08. 36.315(8)(d). The resulting |anguage m ght then
read sonet hing along the lines of:

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -15- January 18, 2006



physical or nental disability that threatens [or]
conprom ses [patient care, has the potential to
conprom se patient care, or inpairs the |licensee's
ability to practice safely] unless such physical or
ment al disability [can] be overcone through an
accommodation for purposes of conplying with this
chapter.

CHAI R ANDERSON asked whether such |anguage in both provisions
woul d wor k.

DR. SHAFFER sai d yes.

CHAIR ANDERSON referred to the aforenentioned |anguage as
Conceptual Anmendnent 2, and [although no formal notion was
made], announced that Conceptual Anendnent 2 was adopt ed.

4:46: 36 PM
REPRESENTATI VE KOTIT, referring to page 10, line 4, stated that
he would like to have the |anguage changed such that it would

read in part, "SHALL, By certified nmail, send a copy", because
there is a 30-day requirenent.

DR. SHAFFER said he did not object to such a change.
4:48: 31 PM
CHAI R ANDERSON referred to the aforenentioned suggested change

as Conceptual Anendnent 3. [Although no formal notion was nade,
Conceptual Amendnent 3 was treated as adopted.]

4. 48: 44 PM

RICK URION, Director, Central Ofice, Division of GCccupationa
Li censi ng, Departnment of  Commerce, Communi ty, & Econonic
Devel opnent (DCCED) inforned the conmttee that he had shown the
bill to the Departnent of Law (DOL) and to his investigative
staff, both of which canme back with unfavorabl e opinions of the
| egi sl ati on. He explained that the premse of the bill was
based on m sconceptions of past history. He went on to say that
| ast session, the legislature passed a bill that formed a new

office of admnistrative hearing officers, which solved many of
the problens that the departnent had. M. Uion explained that
the legislation that was passed set tinme limts on how long a
hearing officer has to act. He stated that the bill currently

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 16- January 18, 2006



before the committee takes dentistry cases out of this new
adm nistrative hearing system and so there would be no hearing
officer on dentist cases if this legislation passes. He
expl ained that the board would becone the hearing officer and
from the board it would go to the Alaska Superior Court, and
suggested that the commttee get a fiscal note fromthe superior
court.

MR. URION explained that there are 654 |icensed dentists in the
state and for the last 10 years there have been 195 conpl aints.
He stated that this is less than 20 conplaints per year, and
went on to say that 6 of these conplaints resulted in licensing
action, 40 percent are closed with no action, and 30 percent
have "sone" action. He stated that [HB 93] changes a system
that deals with six potential cases per year, and said he does
not think there will be good results. He added that 30 days is
not enough tinme to develop a case, stating that this is :
certainly not [going to] protect the public, that's protecting
the qguilty party.” He opined that to require the conplaint
informati on be nade available to the [licensee] would discourage
sonme people from making conplaints, especially if they are
enpl oyed by the licensee. He commented that to suspend a board
menber if a conplaint is filed against them is unfair, adding
that it may be an unjust conplaint. M. Uion opined that the
restriction on tel ephonic neetings for disciplinary actions wll

result in nore plane fares and will cost the board nenbers nore
noney. He added that this will result in a higher I|icensing
cost .

MR. URION explained the system that the Alaska State Medical
Board uses, adding that this would be a better system for the
dental board to consider. In response to Dr. Shaffer's
comments, M. Uion stated that there have been two sunmmary
suspensions in 10 years. He said that the departnent feels that
the current systemis working fine, and remarked that he would
be willing to work with the dental community to find a system
t hat works for them

4:57:49 PM

CHAIR ANDERSON stated that nany of the concerns that the
Di vision of Cccupational Licensing had previously were addressed
with the current CS, and remarked that the issues presently
being raised would be nore appropriately addressed in the House
Judi ci ary Standing Conm tt ee.

5:00: 35 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -17- January 18, 2006



DR, SHAFFER, in response to coments nmade by Representative
GQuttenberg, explained that when an accusation against a |icensee
goes to court, the judge or jury would get to see all the
evi dence involved prior to making a decision. Currently, the
board is required to nake decisions w thout seeing any evidence.
He opined that the current situation lacks "fairness of |aw',
adding that this is the reason for making the evidence avail abl e
to the |icensee. He stated that the "peer review' would offer
nore protection to the public, as it allows patients to ask
ot her dentists whet her or not certain behavi ors are
guest i onabl e.

DR. SHAFFER, in response to questions from Chair Anderson,
agreed that this would be conparable to court cases where the
informati on nust be made public. He explained that a few other
states have simlar systens, adding that the majority of states
have dentists and [dental] hygienists on the state licensing
board, overseeing the entire investigatory process.

5:06: 32 PM

MR URION clarified that under the current system when cases go
to a hearing officer, the hearing officer nakes a decision which
is then sent on to the board. The board can then concur or
reject the decision. He added that the board is then able to
see all of the evidence, which is extensive and therefore nmay
di scourage sone people fromserving as board nenbers.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if, in regard to physicians, a
hearing officer is used for disciplinary proceedings or if the
case is heard by a panel of doctors.

MR. URI ON answered that the case goes to a hearing officer.
5:07:51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT noved to report the proposed CS for HB 93
Version 24-LS0384\I, M schel, 1/12/06, as anended, out of
cormittee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHB 93(L&0) was
reported fromthe House Labor and Commrerce Standing Commttee.
The conm ttee took an at-ease from5:09 to 5:10.

ADJ OURNVENT

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 18- January 18, 2006



There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Labor and Commerce Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at
5:11: 02 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -19- January 18, 2006



